
 

 

 

 
Democratic and Civic 

Support 

City Hall 

115 Charles Street 

Leicester 

LE1 1FZ 

 

15 February 2022 

 
Sir or Madam 
 
I hereby summon you to a SPECIAL meeting of the LEICESTER CITY COUNCIL to 
be held in the Attenborough Hall in City Hall, 115 Charles Street, Leicester, on 
WEDNESDAY, 23 FEBRUARY 2022 at FOUR FIFTY in the afternoon, for the 
business hereunder mentioned. 
 

 
 

 
 

--------------- 
AGENDA 

--------------- 
 

PLEASE NOTE; DUE TO THE NEED TO HOLD A COVID SAFE MEETING AWAY 
FROM THE COUNCIL CHAMBER IT WILL NOT BE POSSIBLE TO WEBCAST 

THIS MEETING 

 
 

 
1. LORD MAYOR'S ANNOUNCEMENTS  
 

 

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 

 

3. HONORARY FREEDOM OF THE CITY   
  

Monitoring Officer 

 

 



 

 

Information for members of the public 
 
 
Attending meetings and access to information 
You have the right to attend formal meetings such as full Council, committee meetings, and 
Scrutiny Commissions and see copies of agendas and minutes.  
However, on occasion, meetings may, for reasons set out in law, need to consider some 
items in private. 
 
Due to COVID restrictions, public access in person is limited to ensure social 
distancing.  Please contact the Democratic Support Officer in advance of the meeting 
regarding arrangements for public attendance. A guide to attending public meetings can be 
found here: https://www.leicester.gov.uk/your-council/decisions-meetings-and-
minutes/public-attendance-at-council-meetings-during-covid-19/  
 
Dates of meetings and copies of public agendas and minutes are available on the Council’s 
website at www.cabinet.leicester.gov.uk, or by contacting us using the details below. 
 
To hold this meeting in as Covid-safe a way as possible, all attendees are asked to follow 
current Government guidance and:  

 maintain distancing while entering and leaving the room/building; 

 remain seated and maintain distancing between seats during the meeting;  

 wear face coverings throughout the meeting unless speaking or exempt;  

 make use of the hand sanitiser available; 

 when moving about the building to follow signs about traffic flows, lift capacities etc;  

 comply with Test and Trace requirements by scanning the QR code at the entrance 

to the building and/or giving their name and contact details at reception prior to the 

meeting; 

 if you are displaying Coronavirus symptoms: a high temperature; a new, continuous 

cough; or a loss or change to your sense of smell or taste, you should NOT attend 

the meeting, please stay at home, and get a PCR test. 

 
Separate guidance on attending the meeting is available for officers. Officers attending the 
meeting are asked to contact the Democratic Support Officer in advance to confirm their 
arrangements for attendance. 
 
Making meetings accessible to all 
 
Wheelchair access – Public meeting rooms at the City Hall are accessible to wheelchair users. 
Wheelchair access to City Hall is from the middle entrance door on Charles Street - press the 
plate on the right hand side of the door to open the door automatically. 
 
Braille/audio tape/translation - If you require this please contact the Democratic Support 
Officer (production times will depend upon equipment/facility availability). 
 
Induction loops - There are induction loop facilities in City Hall meeting rooms. Please speak 
to the Democratic Support Officer using the details below. 
 
Filming and Recording the Meeting - The Council is committed to transparency and supports 
efforts to record and share reports of proceedings of public meetings through a variety of 
means, including social media. In accordance with government regulations and the Council’s 
policy, persons and press attending any meeting of the Council open to the public (except 
Licensing Sub Committees and where the public have been formally excluded) are allowed to 

https://www.leicester.gov.uk/your-council/decisions-meetings-and-minutes/public-attendance-at-council-meetings-during-covid-19/
https://www.leicester.gov.uk/your-council/decisions-meetings-and-minutes/public-attendance-at-council-meetings-during-covid-19/


 

 

record and/or report all or part of that meeting.  Details of the Council’s policy are available at 
www.leicester.gov.uk or from Democratic Support. 
 
If you intend to film or make an audio recording of a meeting you are asked to notify the 
relevant Democratic Support Officer in advance of the meeting to ensure that participants can 
be notified in advance and consideration given to practicalities such as allocating appropriate 
space in the public gallery etc.. 
 
The aim of the Regulations and of the Council’s policy is to encourage public interest and 
engagement so in recording or reporting on proceedings members of the public are asked: 
 to respect the right of others to view and hear debates without interruption; 
 to ensure that the sound on any device is fully muted and intrusive lighting avoided; 
 where filming, to only focus on those people actively participating in the meeting; 
 where filming, to (via the Chair of the meeting) ensure that those present are aware 

that they may be filmed and respect any requests to not be filmed. 
 
 
Further information  
 
If you have any queries about any of the above or the business to be discussed, please 
contact: 
 
Matthew Reeves, Democratic and Civic Support Manager on 0116 4546352. 
Alternatively, email matthew.reeves@leicester.gov.uk . 
 
For Press Enquiries - please phone the Communications Unit on 0116 454 4151 

 

http://www.leicester.gov.uk/
mailto:matthew.reeves@leicester.gov.uk




  

 

 

 

 

Honorary Freedom 
of the City 

 

Decision to be taken by: Council 

 

Date of meeting: 23 February 2022 

 

Lead director/officer: Miranda Cannon, Director of 
Delivery, Communications and Political Governance 

 
 
 
 

1

Appendix A



 

 

Useful information 
 Ward(s) affected: All 

 Report author: Miranda Cannon 

 Author contact details: Miranda.cannon@leicester.gov.uk 

 Report version number: 0.1 

 

1. Summary 
 
To consider conferment of Honorary Freedom of the City of Leicester to Leicester City 
Football Club. 
 

 

2. Recommended decision 
 
That the City Council under and by virtue of the provisions of Section 249 (5) of the Local  
Government Act 1972 confers on Leicester City Football Club the Honorary Freedom of 
the City of Leicester and causes them to be admitted as Honorary Freeman of said  
City in recognition of the honour and distinction brought to the city by their sporting 
achievements and in appreciation of their commitment to community including the 
development and role of sport within the city’s communities. 
 

 

3. Report 
 
3.1 Honorary Freedom Criteria and process  
 
Section 249 of the Local Government Act 1972 allows the City Council to confer the 
Honorary Freedom of the City persons of distinction and persons who have, in the opinion 
of the Council, rendered eminent services to the city. The Act requires that any 
appointment be approved by a resolution passed by not less than two thirds of the 
Members voting thereon at a meeting of the Council specially convened for the purpose.  
 
The process adopted by the City Council where it relates to organisations, additionally 
states that: 
 

 For an organisation to be granted freedom of the city they must have a well-
established and evidenced connection to the city.  

 The honour will only be given to an individual or organisation who the citizens of 
Leicester would recognise as deserving of such an honour and whose contribution 
would stand out from the contributions of most other individuals / organisations for 
example being recognised as inspirational in their field. 

 The individual / organisation must have made a significant contribution to the City 
either through improvement in the well-being of a significant proportion of city residents 
or in raising the reputation and profile of the city. 

 
3.2 Leicester City Football Club history and achievements 
 
Originally named Fosse after The Fosse Way, the team played their first match on 1st 
November 1884 on a private field off Fosse Road South, winning 5-0 over Syston. 
Between 1884 and 1887, their first regular venue was Victoria Park. Fosse defeated 
Coalville in the Leicestershire County Cup final in Loughborough in 1890 and, during the 

2



 

 

following season, were introduced to the FA Cup for the first-ever time. In October of 
1891, an opportunity arose to base the Club on Filbert Street at a venue which was then 
known to the public as the Walnut Street Ground. Following months of lobbying, a major 
moment in the Club’s history arrived in 1894 as an AGM granted Fosse with enough votes 
to earn election to the recently-formed Second Division within the Football League 
pyramid. After wearing an iconic black strip with a sky-blue sash and long white trousers, 
by the time of their inaugural Football League fixture, they had switched to chocolate 
brown and blue halves before, in 1903, electing to wear the blue and white colours 
recognisable today.  
 
After more than one hundred years at Filbert Street the club moved to a new stadium, 
King Power Stadium in 2002. In 2010, the Club was taken over by a Thai-led consortium 
called Asian Football Investments, which was fronted by King Power’s Khun Vichai 
Srivaddhanaprabha, who became Chairman in 2011. His son Khun Aiyawatt 
Srivaddhanapraba was one of two Vice-Chairmen. The Srivaddhanaprabha family are 
now sole owners of the Club. The new owners have invested heavily in Leicester City 
Football Club and in support for the wider city. Sadly, on Saturday 27 October 2018, Club 
Chairman, Khun Vichai Srivaddhanaprabha, was killed in a helicopter accident, alongside 
four others, outside King Power Stadium. His son Khun Aiyawatt vowed to continue his 
father’s legacy. 
 
Leicester City have won the second-tier title a record seven times, won the League Cup 
three times, sealed the FA Community Shield twice, and competed in six European 
campaigns, most notably in the 2016/17 UEFA Champions League, when the Club 
reached the quarter-finals. Undoubtedly their crowning achievement was to win the 
Premier League title in 2015/16, despite pre-season odds of 5,000/1 for them to achieve 
the feat. Then in May 2021, they achieved the Club’s first FA Cup success after beating 
Stoke City, Brentford, Brighton & Hove Albion, Manchester United and Southampton in 
earlier rounds, the Foxes beat Chelsea in the final at Wembley Stadium on 15 May, 2021. 
It meant Leicester City had now won every major honour in English football - the Premier 
League, the FA Cup and the League Cup. A second success in the FA Community Shield, 
formerly the FA Charity Shield, was also secured in August 2021, courtesy of a 1-0 win 
over Manchester City at Wembley. 
 
The Club has also enjoyed success in recent years with the Women’s team. Leicester City 
Women Football Club was founded in 2004 initially as an independent club but were 
acquired in 2020 by King Power. On 4 April 2021, the club won the Women's 
Championship sealing promotion to the FA Women's Super League in the process. 
 
Leicester City Football Club also play a key role in supporting the community. The Foxes 
Foundation formed in 2011/12 and renamed The Vichai Srivaddhanaprabha Foundation in 
November 2018 in honour of Leicester City’s late Chairman, Khun Vichai, has provided 
significant support for local charities. The money raised over the years has made a real 
impact locally, including supporting the renovation of Leicester Royal Infirmary’s Children’s 
Outpatient Ward, funding for life-saving equipment for the Children’s Intensive Care Unit 
and for installation of defibrillators within the community, and support for charities such as 
the city’s LOROS hospice.  
 
Alongside the Foundation, Leicester City Football Club Community Trust (Leicester City in 
the Community) aims to use football to inspire individuals to reach their full potential. The 
Trust runs a range of programmes focusing on education, community engagement and 
health and wellbeing. Their work encompasses programmes which support refugees and 

3



 

 

asylum seekers in the city, support for grassroots football, activities which encourage 
participation in sport across all ages including a focus on physical and mental health and 
wellbeing, and programmes which support young people including those living in care and 
those who are at risk of being disengaged. The Trust has a strong inclusive ethos and 
very much recognises both the diversity of the city and the challenges our communities 
face. The programmes that Leicester City in the Community deliver seek to take account 
of and reach out to all communities including those who are likely to be more vulnerable 
and disengaged. 
 
3.3 Conferment of Honorary Freedom to Leicester City Football Club 
  
The significant contribution of Leicester City Football Club to the city of Leicester is  
clearly demonstrated above, both in terms of their role in raising the reputation and profile 
of the city through their sporting achievements and in appreciation of their commitment to 
community including the development and role of sport within the city’s communities. 
The Club has a long history within the city and rightly deserve to be recognised through 
the conferment of Honorary Freedom by Leicester City Council. 
 

 
4. Financial, legal, equalities, climate emergency and other implications 
 
4.1 Financial implications 

There are no financial implications arising from this report. 
 
Martin Judson, Head of Finance, Ext 37 4101 
 

 
4.2 Legal implications  

The conferment of ‘Honorary’ Freedom of the City is distinct to the granting of Freedom by 
‘entitlement’ under section 248 Local Government Act 1972. The gesture is a symbolic one, 
and brings with it no specific entitlements or obligations. The legal definition of “persons” is 
also given a broad interpretation in law, and includes unincorporated bodies, such as a 
Members Club. The honour can therefore be conferred upon the club. In law, an 
unincorporated association (such as a member’s club) does not have a distinct legal identity 
from those of its constituent Members. The ‘body’ therefore comprises its members.  
 
Kamal Adatia, City Barrister, Ext 37 1401 
 

 
4.3 Equalities implications  

 

Under the Equality Act 2010, public authorities (including the local authority and schools), 
have a Public Sector Equality Duty (PSED) which means that, in carrying out their 
functions, they have a statutory duty to pay due regard to the need to eliminate unlawful 
discrimination, harassment and victimisation and other conduct prohibited by the Act, to 
advance equality of opportunity between people who share a protected characteristic and 
those who don’t and to foster good relations between people who share a protected 
characteristic and those who don’t.  
 
Protected Characteristics under the Equality Act 2010 are age, disability, gender 
reassignment, marriage and civil partnership, pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or 
belief, sex, sexual orientation. 

4



 

 

 
There are no direct equalities implication arising from the report, but awarding Leicester 
City Football Club the Honorary Freedom of the City of Leicester would be positive for 
supporting the work they have done to foster good relations between people who share a 
protected characteristic and those who don’t, as described in the report. 
 
Kalvaran Sandhu, Equalities Manager, Ext 37 6344 
 

 
4.4 Climate Emergency implications 

 

There are no significant climate emergency implications directly associated with this report. 
 
Aidan Davis, Sustainability Officer, Ext 37 2284 
 

 
5.  Background information and other papers: 

None 

 

5




	Agenda
	3 HONORARY FREEDOM OF THE CITY

